An Historical Look

sponsored by AMBLER FIREPLACE & PATIO Bethlehem & Butler Pikes • 215-643-5100

Wissahickon Village Becomes Ambler Village

by Newton M. Howard

It's a simple request. The citizens of our Village of Wissahickon are being asked, in the Year of Our Lord 1869, to choose a new name for both the Depot and the Village. Seems like something that could be accomplished quickly with no problems whatsoever. But that's not to be.

We've called been Wissahickon ever since 1855 the North when Pennsylvania Railroad established their line from Philadelphia to Gwynedd, calling their depot at our sleepy little community "Wissahickon." The area surrounding the depot soon known became Wissahickon Village, though still a part of Upper Dublin Township.

And now, years later, Railroad officials realize that another station with the same name as ours exists on another of their lines. Occasional mix-ups, due to two Wissahickons, has lead to a decision to eliminate one of these, our station being the one chosen for re-naming.

We've been invited to select a new name for the depot, and this is where the troubles begin. At least four family names have been suggested. These are the Harmer, Thomas, Reiff and

David (Tony) Sonetto, Pres.

families. Ambler The Thomas family has been prominent here for generations, with much of the land below Butler Avenue owned at one time by the Thomas family. Also, and perhaps more importantly, Isaac Thomas had been an early postmaster when he operated general store on Bethlehem Pike in Upper Dublin on present-day St. Mary's property.

Another family in the running for the re-naming is the Reiff family, owners of nearly all the land west of the railroad for generations. They owned a number of grist mills, one of which stands today on Butler Avenue, although altered so much as to be unrecognizable in its role as a twin dwelling. The Reiffs' followers feel the town should be named for them because of land given to the Railroad for building its first station. This however is questionable since a land deed shows a purchase of land for \$2,000 by the railroad.

Third family suggested is the Harmer family, first settlers of the land in question. They had received the land grant from William Penn way back in 1682, and it was felt their name should be considered for that rea-

Last, but not least, the Ambler family feels theirs

215-542-2740 • 215-542-2741

across from Pike Restaurant

Mary Johnson Ambler, the little Quaker lady for whom Wissahickon Village was re-named Ambler Village in 1869, the year following her death. She was honored for service given at the scene of the Great Train Wreck below Fort Washington station. Tuesday July 17th, 2001, marks the 145th anniversary of this 1856 tragedy. This is believed to be the only formal portrait of Mary Ambler in existence.

Photograph from Collection of Newton M. Howard

would be an ideal choice because since about 1832 the family has owned large tracts of land, operating the local fulling mill for years. Both Mary and Andrew have

since died, but four of their eight sons, Joseph, David, Isaac and Evan are prominent members of our Wissahickon Village today.

(continued on page 23)



FEAST & FANCY **DELICIOUS GOODIES FOR** STOP YOUR PICNIC BASKET in for Lunch! BOXED SUPPER FOR LOCAL CONCERTS & SUMMER EVENTS 1005 Bethlehem Pike, Spring House Phone 215628-9401 Fax 215643-6078

Open Mon-Fri 9:30 - 5:30 • Closed Sat. in July & August

Wissahickon Village Becomes Ambler Village

(continued from page 22)

Each of the four names suggested has its merits, as well as its followers, making it impossible to agree on any one name. Very early on, though, two of the names have been eliminated, the Harmer and the Thomas families

Now that it's narrowed down to a choice between the Reiffs or the Amblers, a very bitter argument has ensued. For months the battle has raged to such an extent that the Railroad officials have finally stepped into the hostile atmosphere to pick the new name.

Their choice is Ambler, the reason being given by the railroad is the aid given by Mary Ambler at the scene of the Great Train Wreck of July 17, 1856, where she spent the entire day working with the victims of the wreck in summer temperatures reaching 102° in the shade. Mary Ambler had died in 1868, and now, in 1869, the decision has been reached to call our old Wissahickon Village by her name.

Not every one is happy about this name change, in fact, there are many problems as a result of the railroad's decision. After the station and the Village have been renamed Ambler, followers of the Reiff family, and even the Harmer and Thomas backers, are refusing to use the new name in addressing freight to the Village.

Rejection of the new name "Ambler Freight Station" so irritates the railroad officials that they have told us that no freight will be accepted here unless addressed by its new name. We have been forced against

Send in Your News & Photos our will to use the new name of Ambler whether or not we agree with them. Gradually we are using the new name, but not without leaving bitter feelings toward the Ambler family perhaps for years to come. Evidently, time does heal all, for today hardly anyone living has objections to the name. After all, the old name has been preserved in Wissahickon Fire our Company and the Wissahickon School District.

Wood Carving Demo

On Wednesday, July 18th, wood carver Paul Mattern will demonstrate his craft at the Ambler SAAC. This is a presentation for both ladies and men because everyone can learn how to carve.

Ambler SAAC, is located at 45 Forrest Ave. in Ambler. Call 215-619-8863 for more information.

Wheelchair Program

Chestnut-Hill Rehabilitation Hospital, 8601 Stenton Avenue, Wyndmoor offers evaluation and fitting of prescription wheelchairs by a team of rehab specialists and wheelchair mechanics. Repairs and modifications to existing wheelchairs are available. Appointments are necessary. For information call 215-233-6240.

Having an Affair?
Want to guarantee a pleasurable Experience?
Want to be able to relax

Want to be able to relax ? when it's all over?

Then call Hayeck's Cafe for all your catering affairs. It's our pleasure to make your affair a most memorable experience.

SATISFACTION GUARANTEED !!!!!!!

Try us once...it will be ♥ at first bite!

Join us daily for Breakfast & Lunch Monday thru Friday and the Best Breakfast on weekends served 'til 1:00 pm.



521 Limekiln Pike Maple Glen 215-643-2131

Readers Choice - #1 Breakfast Restaurant